
San Luis Obis po  
Local Agency Formation Commission  
Meeting Agenda, August 18, 2022, 9:00am 

MEETING   

AUGUST 18, 2022 – 9 A.M.  
ZOOM MEETING, SEE ACCESS 
INFORMATION BELOW 

CONTACT 

ROB FITZROY 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
805-781-5795
FAX 805-788-2072
SLO.LAFCO.CA.GOV

COMMISSIONERS 

ED WAAGE, CHAIR, CITY  
DEBBIE ARNOLD, VICE CHAIR, COUNTY 
LYNN COMPTON, COUNTY 
STEVE GREGORY, CITY  
MARSHALL OCHYLSKI, SPECIAL DISTRICT 
ROBERT ENNS, SPECIAL DISTRICT  
HEATHER JENSEN, PUBLIC  
DAWN ORTIZ-LEGG, COUNTY ALTERNATE 
CHARLES BOURBEAU, CITY ALTERNATE 
ED EBY, SPECIAL DISTRICT ALTERNATE 
DAVID WATSON, PUBLIC ALTERNATE  

MEETING PARTICIPATION 

• To submit written comment, mention the matter or agenda item number and send via email to
mbing@slo.lafco.ca.gov or fill out an online submission form on our website at slo.lafco.ca.gov, or U.S. mail
at 1042 Pacific St Suite A, San Luis Obispo CA, 93401. All correspondence is distributed to each
Commissioner and will become part of the official record of the Commission meeting.

• To submit a pre-recorded verbal comment call (805) 781-5795; state and spell your name, mention the
agenda item number you are calling about and leave your comment. Your comments will be distributed to
each Commissioner and will become part of the official record of the Commission meeting.

• To provide live comment, join the meeting via Zoom (see meeting access information below) and press
the "raise a hand" button or if joining by phone only, press *9 to indicate a desire to make comment. The
chair or staff will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to comment; limited to 3
minutes per item.

* If you are joining by Zoom & phone, still use the Zoom raise hand button as *9 will not work.

Other Notes: 

• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate
at this meeting, please contact the Clerk at 805-781-5795. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours
prior to the meeting will enable the Clerk to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically disabled.

• It is required by Government Code Section 84308 that a participant in a LAFCO proceeding who has a
financial interest in the decision and who has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any
Commissioner within (12) months prior, must disclose the contribution. If you are affected, please notify

Page 1 of 46

mailto:mbing@slo.lafco.ca.gov


Commission Staff before the hearing. 

MEETING ACCESS 
LAFCO Commission Meetings can be viewed at:  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87452306550?pwd=R1ZyOHpHOS9uc3VzRVc3NHplVmhHQT09 

Webinar ID:  874 5230 6550  Password: 511720 
Call-in Number:  1 669 900 6833  Public Comments:  On the agenda cover page 

MEETING AGENDA 
Call to Order/Roll Call 

Approval of the Minutes: July 21, 2022 

Non-Agenda Public Comment Period 
This is the period in which persons may speak on items that are not on the regular agenda.  You may 
provide public comment in one of the three methods mentioned above in the “Meeting Participation” 
section.  

Consent Agenda 

A-1: Resolution Regarding Commission Meetings Held by Teleconference as Provided by
AB 361 (Recommend Review and Approve) 

Regular Matters 

B-1: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Year End Budget Report (Recommend Review and Approve)

B-2: Office Lease Modification (Recommend Review and Approve)

B-3: 2022 Biennial Update of the Conflict of Interest Code (Recommend Review and
Approve) 

Commissioner Comments 

Legal Counsel Comments 

Executive Officer Comments 

Adjournment 

 (Pages 3 - 8)

(Pages 9 - 14)

(Pages 15 - 26)

(Pages 27 - 38)

(Pages 39 - 46) 

Page 2 of 46

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87452306550?pwd=R1ZyOHpHOS9uc3VzRVc3NHplVmhHQT09


 SAN LUIS OBISPO 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

JULY 21, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

Call to Order 

The San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) meeting was called to order 
at 9:05 a.m. on Thursday, July 21, 2022, by Chairperson Ed Waage in the Board of Supervisors 
Chambers at the County Government Center in San Luis Obispo, California pursuant to the 
Governor’s Executive Order AB 361. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call     

Present: Chairperson Ed Waage, Vice-Chair Debbie Arnold, Commissioners Robert Enns, 
Heather Jensen, and Marshall Ochylski, and Alternate Commissioners Charles 
Bourbeau, Dawn Ortiz-Legg, and Ed Eby 

Absent: Commissioner Lynn Compton, and Steve Gregory, and Alternate Commissioner 
David Watson 

Staff: Rob Fitzroy, LAFCO Executive Officer 
Brian Pierik, LAFCO Legal Counsel 
Imelda Marquez, LAFCO Analyst 
Morgan Bing, LAFCO Clerk Analyst 

Approval of the Minutes: May 19, 2022 

Chairperson Waage announced the consideration of approval for the May 19, 2022, Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

Chairperson Waage asked for any public comment, announcing it was closed shortly after 
hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage asked for Commissioner comments or a motion to approve the minutes. 

Commissioner Enns motioned to approve the minutes. 

Commissioner Jensen seconded the motion. 

AYES: Commissioners Enns, Jensen, Bourbeau, Ochylski, Vice Chair Arnold, and 
Chairperson Waage 

Page 3 of 46



NAYS:   None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

NOTE: Commissioner Ortiz-Legg was not present during the approval of the minutes. 

The motion was passed. 

Non-Agenda Public Comments 

Chairperson Waage asked for any public comment, announcing it was closed shortly after 
hearing none.   

Consent Agenda 

A-1:  Resolution Regarding Commission Meetings Held by Teleconference as Provided by AB
361 (Recommend Review and Approve) 

Chairperson Waage opened the item for public comment, announcing it was closed shortly 
after hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda item. 

Vice Chair Arnold motioned to approve the items on consent. 

Commissioner Enns seconded the motion. 

AYES: Vice Chair Arnold, Commissioners Enns, Bourbeau, Jensen, Ochylski, and 
Chairperson Waage 

NAYS:   None 

ABSTAINING: None 

NOTE: Commissioner Ortiz-Legg was not present during the Consent Agenda item. 

The motion was passed. 

Informational Matters 

B-1:  Study Session on the Dana Reserve Specific Plan and Draft Environmental Impact Report
(Recommend Review and Approve) 

Mr. Fitzroy presented the item. 

Page 4 of 46



Mario Iglesias, the General Manager of Nipomo Community Services District, further 
elaborated on the item and the studies Nipomo Community Services District has conducted on 
the project. 

Mr. Fitzroy continued presenting the item. 

Nick Tompkins, the project applicant, further elaborated on the item and plans for the project. 

Chairperson Waage opened the item for Commissioner questions. 

Vice Chair Arnold asked about anticipated water usage for the project. 

Mr. Tompkins responded to the questions and provided answers. 

Victor Montgomery and Robert Camacho, from RRM Design Group, provided additional input. 

Commissioner Ortiz-Legg asked about the transportation impacts in the Environmental Impact 
Report and commented on the water graph provided. 

Mr. Tompkins responded to the questions and provided answers. 

Commissioner Bourbeau inquired about average size of multifamily units. 

Mr. Tompkins responded to the question and provided answers. 

Commissioner Bourbeau asked about the reliability of the Santa Maria Valley Basin water 
supply. 

Mr. Iglesias responded to the question and provided answers. 

Chairperson Waage asked about the reliability of the Santa Maria Valley Basin water supply. 

Mr. Iglesias responded to the questions and provided answers. 

Commissioner Enns commented on the LAFCO staff report and Draft Environmental Impact 
Report and complimented the applicant’s efforts, followed by questions on the County’s 
Growth Management ordinance. 

Airlin Singewald, from County of San Luis Obispo Planning and Building Department, provided 
additional information. 

Commissioner Ortiz-Legg asked for clarification on the county’s growth rate. 

Mr. Singewald provided clarification. 

Page 5 of 46



Chairperson Waage opened the floor to public comment. 

Public Comment 

Ken Trigueiro, from People’s Self-Help Housing, expressed support for the project and plans for 
their affordable housing site. 

Joe Martinez, resident of Nipomo, provided comment and expressed concerns for the project. 

Tim Martin, resident of Nipomo, voiced concerns for the project, specifically regarding water. 

Public Comment Closed 

Chairperson Waage asked for additional commissioner comments. 

Commissioner Ochylski asked for clarification on the due date of comments on the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report. 

Mr. Fitzroy clarified the due date. 

Commissioner Ortiz-Legg commented on the importance of community outreach. 

Commissioner Ochylski asked for Mr. Tompkins’ input on Alternative 3 of the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report. 

Mr. Tompkins provided comment. 

Chairperson Waage recommended the Environmental Impact Report contain additional 
discussion on water supply. 

Chairperson Waage thanked the project team and announced the item was received and filed. 

B-2:  Shandon San Juan Water District Annexation & Sphere of Influence Application Status,
LAFCO No. 4-R-21 (Recommend Receive and File) 

Mr. Fitzroy presented the item. 

Chairperson Waage opened the item for commissioner comments. 

Commissioner Enns inquired about the County’s objection to the annexation. 

Mr. Fitzroy responded to the question and provided input. 

Commissioner Enns asked about the County GSA’s fees. 

Page 6 of 46



Vice-Chair Arnold and Commissioner Ortiz-Legg responded to the question and provided 
answers. 

Chairperson Waage asked for public comment, announcing it was closed shortly after hearing 
none. 

Chairperson Waage announced the item was received and filed. 

B-3:  Receive Notice of Submittal for Petition of Application for Annexation #13 to County
Service Area 18 – LAFCO File No. 2-R-22, and Application for a Sphere of Influence 
Amendment and Annexation #19 to Cayucos Sanitary District – LAFCO File No. 3-R-22 
(Recommend Receive and File)   

Ms. Marquez presented the item. 

Chairperson Waage opened the item for commissioner comments, hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage asked for any public comment, announcing it was closed shortly after 
hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage announced the item was received and filed. 

B-4:  CALAFCO Updates (Recommend Receive and File)

Mr. Fitzroy presented the item. 

Chairperson Waage opened the item for commissioner comments, hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage asked for any public comment, announcing it was closed shortly after 
hearing none. 

Chairperson Waage announced the item was received and filed. 

Closed Session 

C-1:  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8:
Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
Property: 1042 Pacific Street, Suite A, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
Agency negotiator: Rob Fitzroy 
Negotiating parties: 1042 Pacific Street, A Partnership 
Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment for lease  

Mr. Pierik announced the Closed Session item. 

Page 7 of 46



At 10:59 a.m., Chairperson Waage called the open session back into order. 

Report on Closed Session: LAFCO Legal Counsel, Brian Pierik, stated that there was no 
reportable action. 

Commissioner Comments: Mr. Fitzroy introduced the new Clerk Analyst, Morgan 
Bing.  

Legal Counsel Comments:   None 

Executive Officer Comments: None 

Adjournment: With no further business before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at 
11:02 a.m. until the next meeting of the Commission pursuant to Governor’s Executive Orders, 
depending upon the progression of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL NOR ARE THEY A PERMANENT PART OF THE RECORD 
UNTIL THEY ARE APPROVED BY LAFCO COMMISSIONERS AT THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING. 

_________________ 

Respectfully submitted,  
Morgan Bing, LAFCO Clerk Analyst 

Page 8 of 46



TO: 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

FROM: BRIAN PIERIK, LEGAL COUNSEL 

DATE: AUGUST 18, 2022 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION REGARDING COMMISSION MEETINGS HELD BY 
TELECONFERENCE AS PROVIDED BY AB361  

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Commission consider taking the following 
actions: 

Action 1: Adopt Resolution of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation 
Commission Proclaiming the Continuing Need to Meet by Teleconference Pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54953 (e). 

DISCUSSION 

All meetings of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 
(“Commission”) are open and public as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. 
Gov. Code 54950 – 54963). 

Before COVID-19, Section 54953(b) of the Brown Act allowed for teleconferencing 
if the public agency complied with the following requirements: 

1. At least a quorum of the members of the legislative body must participate from
locations within the boundaries within the jurisdiction of the local agency.

2. An agenda shall be posted at all teleconference locations.

3. Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and agenda of the
meeting.

4. Each teleconference location shall be accessible to the public.

Due to COVID-19, Governor Newsom temporarily suspended compliance with these 
requirements and as a result, city officials were allowed to teleconference from 
locations such as their homes without needing to open up those homes or other  

San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 
ED WAAGE 

City Member 

Vice-Chair 
DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 
County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  
Special District Member 

ROBERT ENNS 
Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 
City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 
Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

DAWN ORTIZ-LEGG 
County Member 

ED EBY 
Special District Member 

CHARLES BOURBEAU  
City Member 

David Watson 
Public Member 

STAFF 

ROB FITZROY 
Executive Officer 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 
Analyst 

MORGAN BING 
Clerk Analyst 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 
Legal Counsel 

Page 9 of 46



locations for entry by members of the public. However, Governor Newsom’s temporary 
suspension of such rules expired on September 30, 2021. AB 361 allows the modified 
teleconferencing rules to continue, subject to the existence of certain requirements of 
Government Code Section 54953 (e). 

Government Code section 54953(e)(1), which was adopted by AB 361, lists the circumstances 
under which a local agency may use such modified teleconferencing procedures, as follows:   

(1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements of
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements of
paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances:

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or
local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing.

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose
of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would
present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency,
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. The State of Emergency remains in effect and COVID-19 continues to threaten the 
health and lives of the public and the Delta and Omicron variants are highly transmissible in 
indoor settings.   

For these reasons, the recommended action is for the Commission to adopt the Resolution of the 
San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission Proclaiming The Continuing Need To Meet 
By Teleconference Pursuant To Government Code Section 54953 (e), Attachment A to this Staff 
Report. 

The attached Resolution will authorize the Commission to hold teleconference meetings within 
the requirements of AB 361 but does not prohibit the Commission from holding in person 
meetings in the future.  

If the state of emergency ends or if the Commission decides to rescind the Resolution, then 
meetings of the Commission must comply with the pre-COVID teleconferencing rules of 54953(b) 
described earlier in this Staff Report. 

Attachment A:  Resolution of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 
Proclaiming The Continuing Need To Meet By Teleconference Pursuant To Government Code 
Section 54953 (e) 

Page 10 of 46



Attachment A 

Resolution of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation 
Commission Proclaiming The Continuing Need To Meet By 

Teleconference Pursuant To Government Code Section 
54953 (e) 

Page 11 of 46



IN THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Thursday, August 18, 2022 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX 

RESOLUTION OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
PROCLAIMING THE CONTINUING NEED TO MEET BY TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT 

TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953 (e) 

 WHEREAS, all meetings of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission are open 

and public as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963); and 

 WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953(e), makes provisions for remote 

teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 

with the requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain 

conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency as a result of 

the COVID-19 pandemic; and  

WHEREAS, such State of Emergency remains in effect; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to threaten the health and lives of the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Delta and Omicron variants are highly transmissible in indoor settings; and 

WHEREAS, breakthrough cases are becoming more common 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2022, the Commission adopted a Resolution Proclaiming The 

Continuing Need To Meet By Teleconference Pursuant To Government Code Section 54953 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Local Agency Formation 

Commission of the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California (“Commission”), as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth hereinabove are true and correct and are hereby

incorporated by this reference.

2. Imminent Risk to Health and Safety.  Due to COVID-19, holding meetings of the

Commission in person will present imminent risk to the health and safety to attendees.

Page 12 of 46



3. Findings.  The Commission has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of

emergency and finds that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of

the members to meet safely in person.

4. Compliance With Government Code Section 54953.  The Commission will continue to meet

by teleconference in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e).

5. Effective Date of Resolution.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption

and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) the day after the next meeting of the Commission or

(ii) such time the Commission adopts a subsequent resolution rescinding this Resolution.

6. Future Resolutions.  The Commission expressly reserves the right to adopt Resolutions

more than 30 days after this date of adoption of this Resolution to authorize the Commission to

continue to meet by teleconference in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)

provided that a State of Emergency exists as of the date of adoption of such Resolutions.

Upon a motion of        , seconded by Commissioner    , and 

on the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABESENT: 

ABSTAINING: 

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 

Ed Waage, Chair  Date 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

ATTEST: 

Rob Fitzroy  Date 
LAFCO Executive Officer 

Page 13 of 46



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

Brian Pierik  Date 
LAFCO Legal Counsel 

CAM #4863-9908-1729 v1

Page 14 of 46



 

TO:  MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

FROM:  ROB FITZROY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE:  AUGUST 18, 2022 

SUBJECT: YEAR END BUDGET REPORT 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Commission consider taking the 
following actions: 

Action 1:  Receive and file the Fiscal Year (FY) 21-22 Year End Budget Report 
and direct the Executive Officer to submit it to the County 
Auditor/Controller. 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

This is the FY 21-22 Year-End Report for the San Luis Obispo Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO). The LAFCO operating budget is comprised 
of four components: 1) salaries, payroll taxes, and benefits, 2) services and 
supplies, 3) revenues, and 4) fund balance and reserves.  Management of 
the budget is based on “bottom-line” principles that allow for variation 
within individual line-item accounts as long as the overall expenditures 
remain within the approved budgeted.   

LAFCO’s budget is funded by the County, Cities and Independent Special 
Districts. Each agency grouping pays one-third of the LAFCO budget. City and 
District shares are pro-rated based on general revenues reported to the 
State Controller’s Office on an annual basis. LAFCO also receives revenue 
from application fees and interest earnings.  

LAFCO is contracted with the County Auditor for various financial services. 
Every financial transaction is processed through the County Auditor’s 
financial system.  This approach ensures accuracy, transparency and 
accountability.  The County Auditor’s Office also provides LAFCO with claims 
processing, invoicing and financial review services. The Auditor’s financial 
tracking system assists LAFCO in monitoring the budget and compiling 
budget report data, as well as provide independent review of the budget.  

San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 
ED WAAGE 

City Member 

Vice-Chair 
DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 
County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 
Special District Member 

ROBERT ENNS 
Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 
City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 
Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

DAWN ORTIZ-LEGG 
County Member 

ED EBY 
Special District Member 

CHARLES BOURBEAU 
City Member 

David Watson 
Public Member 

STAFF 

ROB FITZROY 
Executive Officer 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 
Analyst 

MORGAN BING 
Clerk Analyst 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 
Legal Counsel 

Page 15 of 46



EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENTS 

LAFCO is in a healthy budgetary and operational state.  FY 21-22 resulted in budgetary 
savings primarily due to the vacant Clerk position.  Budgeted expenditures were expected 
to be $612,679 however actual year-end expenditures were $543,079, resulting in a year 
end budgetary savings of $69,600.  Now that LAFCO is fully staffed with an Executive 
Officer, Analyst and Clerk Analyst, the organization is operating at full capacity and staff will 
continue to bring positive, effective and efficient changes into FY 22-23. The recently 
adopted FY 22-23 budget is expected to meet the needs of the organization for the 
remainder of the fiscal year. 

YEAR END BUDGET REPORT 

Table 1 shows a summary of the year-end budget status for LAFCO.  Salaries were 12% 
under budget due to the vacant Clerk position. Additionally, services and supplies were 
under budget by 9% in various line-items due decreased expenses in certain areas, for 
example, conferences/travel/training budgets were not fully used due to cancellations of 
events due to ongoing impacts related to covid.   

Table 1. FY 21-22 Year End Expenditures 
Budgeted 

Expenditures 
Actual 

Expenditures 
Percent Expended 

Salaries $476,132 $418,231 88% 
Services / Supplies $136,547 $124,848 91% 
Totals $612,679 $543,079 89% 

Table 2 shows a summary of revenue for FY 21-22.  Due to an increase in application 
activity, processing fees exceeded projected revenues.  All agencies contributed their 
respective portion of the budget in a timely manner.  LAFCO did not need to use $35,000 
from reserves as anticipated because revenue generated exceeded actual expenditures, 
that is, without the use of the $35,000 revenue was $581,521, while expenditures were 
$543,079 which resulted in a scenario where it was not necessary to pull from reserves.  

Table 2. FY 21-22 Year End Revenue 
Budgeted Revenue Actual Revenue 

Revenue $21,000 $24,842 
Agency Contributions $556,679 $556,679 
Use of Reserve Funds $35,000 Not Used 
Totals $612,679 $581,521 

Page 16 of 46



Table 3 shows fund balance reserves.  As noted above, it was not necessary to pull $35,000 
from reserves to achieve budget targets.  In addition to not being required to use reserves, 
we also added $38,442 to the existing reserve fund balance ($581,521 revenue - $543,079 
expenditures).  The new reserve fund balance is $301,021. 

Table 3. FY 21-22 Year End Reserve Fund Balance 
Beginning FY 21-22 Year End FY 21-22 

Existing Reserve Fund $262,579 $262,579 
Year End Surplus - $38,442 
Year End Reserve Fund - $301,021 

CREDIT CARD STATEMENTS 

As per Commission practice with each quarterly budget report, we have included credit 
card statements for the April, May, and June 2022 as Attachment B.  The LAFCO credit card 
is used to purchase routine office items such as postage, ink, paper, general office supplies, 
as well as other office equipment when necessary.  An overview of credit card usage is as 
follows.  

• April – Zoom subscription, Canva (business cards), USPS postage
• May – Zoom subscription, Job Postings for Clerk Analyst, FedEx mailings, Microsoft

365 subscription, County Clerk Recorder filing fees, Costco (office computer), Poor
Richards Press (business cards)

• June – Zoom subscription, Staples (two replacement office chairs), Trophy Hunters
(name plates), Costco (food for commission meetings, computer monitor)

Attachment A:  Year End Budget Detail   
Attachment B:  Credit Card Statements for April, May, June 2022 

Page 17 of 46



Attachment A 

Year End Budget Detail

Page 18 of 46



Period Ending: June 30, 2022

EXPENDITURES SUMMARY Adopted 21-22
Year End 

Expenditure
Year End 
Balance

% Expended

Salaries 289,892 270,953 18,939 93%
Benefits & Payroll Taxes 186,239 147,279 38,960 79%
Services and Supplies 136,547 124,848 11,699 91%

Total Expenses Summary 612,678 543,079 69,599 89%

EXPENDITURES DETAIL Adopted 21-22 Expenditure YTD Balance YTD % Expended

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries 289,892 270,953 18,939 93%
Benefits & Payroll Taxes 186,239 147,279 38,960 79%

Subtotal Salaries & Benefits 476,131 418,231 57,900 88%

Services and Supplies Adopted 21-22 Expenditure YTD Balance YTD % Expended

Food 600 347 253 58%
Maintenance - Equipment 30 0 30 0%
Maintenance - Software 50 119 -69 238%
CALAFCO/Other Memberships 8,000 6,406 1,594 80%
Office Supplies 2,500 2,702 -202 108%
Commissioner/Professional Serv. 10,000 10,319 -319 103%
Publication/Legal Notices 1,000 441 559 44%
Rent 37,000 36,677 323 99%
Small Equipment 400 454 -54 114%
Large Equipment 1,000 4,350 -3,350 435%
Computer Software 500 505 -5 101%
Employee Mileage 200 200 0%
Commissioner Mileage 1,200 138 1,062 12%
Airfare/Public Transportation 0 0 0 0%
Accommodations/Travel 2,500 321 2,179 13%
Auto Allowance 5,400 5,400 0 100%
Training/Conf Registration 3,500 688 2,812 20%
Utilities 4,200 3,652 548 87%
Car/Vehicle Rentals 500 325 175 65%
Postage 1,000 481 519 48%
Custodian 1,100 1,310 -210 119%
Copying 300 22 278 7%
ITD-SAP/Board Chambers 850 0 850 0%
Phones/Internet 3,000 3,120 -120 104%
County Auditor 8,817 8,596 221 97%
Insurance 16,500 14,376 2,124 87%
Legal Counsel 26,400 24,100 2,300 91%

Subtotal Services & Supplies 136,547 124,848 11,699 91%

Total Expenses 612,678 543,079 69,599 89%

REVENUE DETAIL Adopted 21-22 Realized YTD Balance YTD % Realized

Interest 4,000 2,822 2,822 71%
Environmental Fees 1,000 4,000 4,000 400%
Sphere of Influence Fee 2,000 4,500 4,500 225%
LAFCO Processing Fees 14,000 13,520 13,520 97%
Use of Fund Balance If needed 35,000 Not Needed N/A N/A 

Sub-Total w/o Agency Charges 56,000 24,842 24,842 44%

LAFCO Charges to Agencies 556,679 556,679 556,679 100%

Total Revenue 612,679 581,521 581,521 95%

Fund Balance-Reserves
  Beginning FY 21-

22
 Year End 
Reserves

Existing Fund Balance and Reserves 262,579 262,579

Year End Surplus 0 38,442

Year End Reserves/Fund Balance 262,579 301,021

Fiscal Year 2021-22  LAFCO Budget 
Year End Status Report

Page 19 of 46



Attachment B 

Credit Card Statements for April, May, June 2022

Page 20 of 46



Page 21 of 46



Page 22 of 46



Page 23 of 46



Page 24 of 46



Page 25 of 46



Page 26 of 46



 

TO:  MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

FROM:  ROB FITZROY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE:  AUGUST 18, 2022 

SUBJECT: OFFICE LEASE MODIFICATION 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Commission consider taking the 
following actions: 

Action 1:  Review the proposed lease modifications summary and draft lease 
agreement (Attachment A and B), and direct Chair of the Commission to sign 
the lease agreement.   

DISCUSSION 

LAFCO began leasing 1042 Pacific St. Suite A on May 31, 2001.  The lease was 
last modified on August 21, 2012, at which time the monthly lease rate was 
increased to $3,056.45 (plus approximately $330 in utilities), with a 5 year 
lease agreement, after 5 years the agreement defaulted to month to month.  
It has been approximately 10 years since the lease was modified and the 
monthly rate has not changed since that time.  In June, the property owner 
engaged staff regarding lease extensions and modifications.  Staff 
coordinated with the property owner on a new lease agreement.  Key points 
of the updated lease agreement are as follows: 

• Monthly lease will increase from $3,056.45 (plus an average of $330 /
month in utilities) to $3,500 total (payment of utilities no longer
required)

• Property owner will assume payment of all utilities (currently LAFCO
pays electricity, gas, which average $330 / month)

• Total office space expenses will increase by $114 / month from $3,386
(including utilities) to a flat rate of $3,500

• 5 year term beginning September 2022, at the end of 5 years there is
an option to extend the lease for another 5 years

• Includes 180 day cancellation at any time for LAFCO’s benefit
• $10,000 stipend from property owner to conduct certain needed

improvements such as interior painting and/or floor replacement

San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 
ED WAAGE 

City Member 

Vice-Chair 
DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 
County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 
Special District Member 

ROBERT ENNS 
Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 
City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 
Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

DAWN ORTIZ-LEGG 
County Member 

ED EBY 
Special District Member 

CHARLES BOURBEAU 
City Member 

David Watson 
Public Member 

STAFF 

ROB FITZROY 
Executive Officer 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 
Analyst 

MORGAN BING 
Clerk Analyst 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 
Legal Counsel 

Page 27 of 46



ANALYSIS 

While the rate will increase from $3,056 to $3,500, the property owner is assuming payment 
of all utilities currently paid by LAFCO, which average $330/month.  LAFCO currently 
expends approximately $3,386 for office space and utilities.  The property owner is 
proposing a flat rate lease of $3,500 that includes all utilities or a $114 increase from current 
expenditures ($3,386). This represents an increase of 3%. There is also a 180-day notice to 
allow termination of the lease at any time by LAFCO should the need arise.  As noted above, 
at the end of year 5 in 2027, there is an option for a lease extension for another 5 years with 
incremental increases thereafter – no decision is necessary for the 5 year extension in 2027 
at this time.   

Staff evaluated other options for office space and current market rates for lease space 
within the area.  Current market rates for similar locations and amenities average from 
$2.20/ square foot (SF) to $4.50 / SF.  The existing lease rate plus utilities is $1.93 / SF, and 
the increase to $3,500 for years 2022-2027 will be $2.00 / SF. Overall, the proposed rate 
increase is competitive when compared to other lease options currently available.   

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that LAFCO renews the lease because it locks in a competitive rate for 
up to 5 years at an office location that has served LAFCO well for over 20 years with the 
option to cancel at any time with 180 days’ notice.  In addition, the proposed cost increase 
will not necessitate a budget augmentation for Fiscal Year 22-23.  Total budgeted office 
lease / utility expenditures for FY 22-23 are $41,700 and the new lease would be $42,000, a 
$300 difference for the entire year.  The $300 difference can be accommodated in the 
adopted FY 22-23 budget.   

In 5 years when the proposed lease terminates, staff can reevaluate the ‘option to extend’ 
based on market conditions at that time and whether it makes sense to enter into such an 
agreement.  

Additional Options 
1. The Commission may direct staff to negotiate further with the property owner if

any terms are not to the satisfaction of the Commission.
2. The Commission may direct staff to further evaluate other office lease options

within the downtown area or property acquisitions.

Attachment A:  Lease Agreement 
Attachment B:  Additional Terms  

Page 28 of 46



Attachment A 

Lease Agreement

Page 29 of 46



Page 30 of 46



Page 31 of 46



Page 32 of 46



Page 33 of 46



Page 34 of 46



Page 35 of 46



Page 36 of 46



Attachment B 

Additional Terms

Page 37 of 46



Page 38 of 46



 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

FROM: ROB FITZROY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE: AUGUST 18, 2022 

SUBJECT: 2022 BIENNIAL UPDATE OF THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Commission consider taking the 
following actions: 

Action 1:  Adopt the resolution to amend the conflict of interest code, as 
contained in Attachment A. 

DISCUSSION 
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is required to maintain a 
conflict-of-interest (COI) code under the California Political Reform Act, 
which includes all the designated positions that are required to file a “Form 
700” with the County Clerk of the Board - the local code administrator. Every 
elected official and public employee who makes or influences governmental 
decisions is required to submit a Statement of Economic Interests, known as 
“Form 700”.  

The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review 
its COI code biennially. LAFCO’s COI code was last updated through the 2020 
biennial review; changes were approved by the Commission on September 
17, 2020, and January 21, 2021. As part of the 2022 biennial review, an 
amendment is proposed to re-name a recently augmented position, 
previously known as the Commission Clerk, to Clerk Analyst. Attachment A 
contains LAFCO’s proposed revised COI code shown in red. No further 
changes are necessary at this time.  

An agency/department’s COI code is not effective until it has been reviewed 
by County Counsel and approved by the County Board of Supervisors. LAFCO 
Counsel will work with the County Clerk of the Board and the County 
Counsel in finalizing the proposed changes.  

Attachment A:  Resolution adopting Updated Conflict of Interest Code 

San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 
ED WAAGE 

City Member 

Vice-Chair 
DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 
County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 
Special District Member 

ROBERT ENNS 
Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 
City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 
Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

DAWN ORTIZ-LEGG 
County Member 

ED EBY 
Special District Member 

CHARLES BOURBEAU 
City Member 

David Watson 
Public Member 

STAFF 

ROB FITZROY 
Executive Officer 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 
Analyst 

MORGAN BING 
Clerk Analyst 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 
Legal Counsel 

Page 39 of 46



Attachment A 

Resolution adopting Updated Conflict of Interest Code

Page 40 of 46



IN THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Thursday, August 18, 2022 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX 

2022 BIENNIAL UPDATE OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSION’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 87300 requires each local public agency to 
adopt and promulgate a conflict of interest code pursuant to the Political Reform Act (Gov. 
Code, § 81000 et seq.); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors is designated as the “code reviewing body” for all 
local agencies, except cities, whose boundaries are located wholly within the county; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant Government Code section 87306.5, the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of San Luis Obispo, as the local code administrator, directed those 
local agencies that have adopted a conflict of interest code to review their codes to determine 
whether any changes to their codes are necessary due to changed circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 87306 requires local agencies to submit to the 
code reviewing body a biennial report identifying changes in its code that are necessitated by 
changed circumstances, such as the addition of new positions, or the deletion of positions that 
have become obsolete; and 

WHEREAS, minor changes need to be made to LAFCO’s Conflict of Interest Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has duly considered the proposed amendments to the 
Conflict of Interest Code; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Local Agency 
Formation Commission that: 

1. The Amended Conflict of Interest Code attached hereto as Exhibit 1 supersedes the
Conflict of Interest Code last amended on September 17, 2020, and January 21, 2021.

2. The list of designated LAFCO positions and applicable disclosure categories attached as
Appendix A & B is hereby adopted as the appendix of designated positions and
disclosure categories to accompany section 18730.

3. Designated employees and officers shall file statements of economic interest (FPPC
Form 700) with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors who will make the statements
available for public inspection and copying.

4. This conflict of interest code shall not take effect until the San Luis Obispo County Board
of Supervisors approves it in its capacity as code reviewing body under the Political
Reform Act.  The Commission Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to submit a

Page 41 of 46



certified copy of this resolution with appendices to the Board of Supervisors and request 
approval of the Conflict of Interest Code. 

5. After approval by the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors, the attached Exhibit
1 together with Appendices A & B shall constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the
San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission.

Upon a motion by ___________, seconded by Commissioner____________, and on the 
following roll call vote: 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINING:  

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 

Ed Waage, Chair  Date 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

ATTEST: 

Rob Fitzroy  Date 
LAFCO Executive Officer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

Brian Pierik  Date 
LAFCO Legal Counsel 

Page 42 of 46



Exhibit 1 

SAN LUIS OBISPO 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Incorporation by Reference of FPPC Model Code

The Political Reform Act, codified at Government Code §81000 et. seq., requires each
state and local government agency to adopt and promulgate a conflict of interest code.
The Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) has adopted a regulation, 2 California
Code of Regulations §18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest
code. (“Model Code”.)  This Model Code may be adopted by local agencies and
incorporated by reference as the agency’s conflict of interest code, together with
appendices setting forth the designated positions and relevant disclosure categories
applicable to each position. The Model Code may be amended from time to time by the
FPPC after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments in the Political Reform
Act.

The terms of 2 California Code of Regulations §18730 and any amendments to it, duly
adopted by the FPPC, are hereby incorporated by reference.

Pursuant to section 2 of the Model Code, Appendix B attached hereto sets forth
LAFCO’s Designated Position List. Those persons holding positions listed in Appendix B
must file statements of economic interest (Form 700) with the Executive Officer of the
Commission setting forth financial interests in the disclosure categories identified therein
and more fully defined in Appendix A, attached hereto.

B. Disqualification and Disclosure

The provisions of Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 9 of the Government Code are
applicable to LAFCO. LAFCO officers must not accept, solicit, or direct a contribution of
more than two hundred fifty dollars ($250) from any party, or his or her agent, or from
any participant, or his or her agent, while a proceeding involving a license, permit, or
other entitlement for use is pending before LAFCO and for three months following the
date a final decision is rendered in the proceeding if the officer knows or has reason to
know that the participant has a financial interest, as that term is used in Government
Code section 87100 (of the Political Reform Act). This prohibition applies regardless of
whether the officer accepts, solicits, or directs the contribution for himself or herself, or
on behalf of any other officer, or on behalf of any candidate for office or on behalf of any
committee. (Gov. Code, § 84308, subd. (b).)

Page 43 of 46



Prior to rendering any decision in a proceeding involving a license, permit or other 
entitlement for use pending before the Commission, each commissioner or alternate 
commissioner, as the case may be, who received a contribution within the preceding 12 
months in an amount of more than two hundred fifty dollars ($250) from a party or from 
any participant to a LAFCO proceeding shall disclose that fact on the record of the 
proceeding.   

LAFCO members are disqualified and are not able to participate in any proceeding 
involving an “entitlement for use” (within the meaning of § 84308, subd. (a)(5)) if, within 
the 12 months preceding the LAFCO decision, the Commissioner received $250 or more  
in campaign contributions from the applicant, an agent of the applicant or any financially 
interested person who actively supports or opposes the LAFCO decision on the matter.1 

1This requirement is based on Government Code section 87100, which provides: Prior to rendering any decision in a 
proceeding involving a license, permit or other entitlement for use pending before an agency, each officer of the 
agency who received a contribution within the preceding 12 months in an amount of more than two hundred fifty 
dollars ($250) from a party or from any participant shall disclose that fact on the record of the proceeding. No officer 
of an agency shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his or her official position to influence the 
decision in a proceeding involving a license, permit, or other entitlement for use pending before the agency if the 
officer has willfully or knowingly received a contribution in an amount of more than two hundred fifty dollars ($250) 
within the preceding 12 months from a party or his or her agent, or from any participant, or his or her agent if the 
officer knows or has reason to know that the participant has a financial interest in the decision, as that term is 
described with respect to public officials in Article 1 (commencing with Section 87100) of Chapter 7. 

Page 44 of 46



APPENDIX A 

Disclosure Categories 

1) All sources of income, including gifts;

2) Interests in real property located in whole or in part within, or not more than one- 
half mile outside, the boundaries of San Luis Obispo County (does not include
the principal place of residence); and

3) Investments and business positions in business entities located in or doing
business in San Luis Obispo County and engaged in:
a. The acquisition, sale, lease, or development of real property;

b. Providing of insurance brokerage or consulting services; or

c. Providing services of the type which have, in the past two years or which with
reasonable foreseeability, may be used in the next one-year period by the
filer’s division within the office.

Page 45 of 46



Appendix B 

Designations Position List 

Designated Position    Disclosure Category Numbers 

 

LAFCO Executive Officer     1, 2, 3 

LAFCO Deputy Executive Officer    1, 2, 3 

LAFCO Legal Counsel     1, 2, 3  

LAFCO Commission Clerk Analyst    1, 2, 3a, 3c 

LAFCO Commissioners & Alternate    1, 2, 3 

 Commissionersi 

LAFCO Analyst      1, 2, 3a, 3c 

Consultantsii       1, 2, 3 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 

i Board of Supervisors who are designated as governing board members of LAFCO report pursuant to 
Government Code section 87200. Alternate Commissioners for the Board of Supervisors members on the 
LAFCO governing board report pursuant to this code. 

 
ii The disclosure by consultants is subject to the following limitation: The LAFCO Executive Officer may 
determine in writing that a particular consultant, including a consultant filling a position designated above 
is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to fully comply with 
the disclosure requirements in this section.  Such written determination shall include a description of the 
consultant’s duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure 
requirements, if any.  The Executive Officer’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for 
public inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. 

 

Page 46 of 46


	August 18, 2022, AGENDA
	July 21, 2022, MINUTES
	A-1 RESOLUTION REGARDING COMMISSION MEETING HELD BY TELECONFERENCE
	Attachment A

	B-1 FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 YEAR END BUDGET REPORT
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	B-2 OFFICE LEASE MODIFICATION
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	B-3 BIENNIAL UPDATE OF THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
	Attachment A




